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Compost Facility RFP # 730A 

ADDENDUM 2 

Tuesday, July 27, 2010 

 

Attendance from July 19
th

 pre-proposal meeting:  See attached list. 

RFP Review: 

1. Proposers may submit a lease proposal for the City’s compost equipment if they choose. 
2. Written comments must be received by the City of Ann Arbor by close of business on Friday, July 

23, 2010. 

3. Proposals are due to the City’s Purchasing Unit before 2:00 PM on Monday, August 2, 2010. 
4. Any addendum to this RFP will be posted on the City website and be distributed to prospective 

proposers on the attached attendance list. 

5. A bid bond in the amount of $10,000 is required with each proposal. 

6. A performance bond in the amount of $200,000 will be required by the selected contractor. 

7. The capabilities of the City operated scale house were reviewed, including the hours of 

operation.  Hours of operation are: Monday-Friday 7 am-4 pm and Saturday, 8 am -12 pm (April 

1- June 30) 

8. The far right column of the chart on page 19 of the RFP titled “Yard Debris Breakdown” includes 
volumes for the first six months of 2010. 

9. Noted that liquidated damages for failure to perform are part of the contract documents. 

10. Residents will no longer be raking fall leaves to the curbside for bulk collection by the City.  City 

leaf collection will utilize compost carts and leaves bagged in paper yard debris bags picked up 

by the City and delivered to the compost site.  Yard debris bags are not provided by the City. 

Questions/Comments from the Attendees during the meeting: 

1. Form A-4 under the Technical/Operational Experience should include a general overview of the 

proposer’s intended operation of the site including material receiving, processing and marketing 
operations.  See page 30 of the RFP for more detail. 

2. What happened with the finalist from the last RFP process?  Saint Louis Composting and the City 

were negotiating contract terms when SLC expressed their concern over the successful 

operation of the site with the economic changes that were happening.  Market pricing and 

incoming volumes at the site had changed significantly from when the earlier proposals were 

received in 2009. It is important that both parties have a good opportunity to succeed in this 

partnership and the City decided to request new proposals since it had been so long since the 

original RFP was released. 

3. A summary of the proposals from the previous RFP was requested and is attached as part of this 

addendum.  City pricing was based on accepting 9,000 tons of yard waste and leaves per year.   
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4. How much material was Waste Management bringing into the compost site?  The first chart on 

page 19 of the RFP shows that WM and Woodland Meadows (a site operated by WM) brought in 

a combined 9,345 yards in 2008 and 6,301 yards in 2009. 

5. What materials does the City have control of?  The City controls residential yard waste that is 

collected curbside.  There are also some materials collected at commercial locations that are 

participating in the food waste collection pilot program. 

6. What is the capacity of the site?  The current site designated for composting is 26 acres, which 

includes material delivery, grinding, active composting windrows, curing piles, detention ponds, 

buffers and access roads   The Contractor must meet all MDNRE composting site regulations.  

How are tip fees set?  Tip fees for materials brought in by the City of Ann Arbor would be 

determined by the contractual arrangement with the selected vendor.  Tip fees for materials 

brought in by others would be determined solely by the selected vendor.  Form A-10 has been 

revised, and no longer requires tip fees for non-City materials.  However, projected tonnages 

for non-City materials must be included to allow the City to evaluate the financial aspects of the 

proposal.    

7. Can other compostable materials be brought to the site?  The City is open to allowing additional 

compostable materials at the site that are consistent with state and local requirements and 

upon receiving City approval.  Please see attached 2/11/05 letter and the 2007 exemption from 

MDEQ regarding materials the site can process.  The 2007 Exemption may need to be approved 

by Pittsfield Township as acceptable under the 2005 City-Township Development Agreement 

and approved site plan. 

8. Can the City expand on their intent under Section 4.04 of the proposed contract referencing 

contaminated loads?  If the contractor determines that a City load is contaminated, they must 

contact the City for confirmation and the City will be responsible for disposing of the portion of 

the City load containing the contaminated materials.  The City has staff at the Wheeler Service 

Center for multiple shifts each day that can respond quickly to such a call.  If the material is from 

a non-City load, the contamination must be confirmed and the contaminated materials must be 

properly disposed of by, and at the expense of, the contractor or the third party who delivered 

the load.  The City has not experienced any recent problems with contaminated loads. 

9. Does the vendor need to register with the STA, and pay their fees, or can they simply test to the 

STA standards?  The vendor will need to register with the STA.   

10. Actual budget information for the compost operation over the last three years was requested.  

A budget summary is attached as part of this addendum. 

11. Does the City have an educational program to minimize contamination?  The City has an 

extensive educational program for both the residents and route drivers to help identify 

appropriate materials for composting including the City’s website and quarterly Waste Watcher 
magazine that is mailed to all residents and businesses. 

12. Is there an exhibit B to the proposed contract in the RFP?  No, there are exhibits A, C and D to 

the proposed contract (Attachment B).  There is an exhibit B (MDEQ Permit Forms) under 

Attachment C of the RFP. 

13. Has the City had any problems with litter, odor or compliance issues?  No we have not. 
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14. What are the license or permit requirements for the selected vendor?  Please refer to 

Attachment C, Exhibit B for MDEQ requirements.   

15. Is there a requirement to utilize the current compost employees?  No, the City employees will 

be assimilated into other City operations where available. 

16. What becomes of the product already on site at the time of transition?  All materials will 

transfer to the contractor.  Fall leaves are expected to be partially composted and partially 

screened. 

17. How are tip fees for site generated residue handled?  These are the responsibility of the 

contractor.  Likely, the contractor would negotiate a price for these materials with the Waste 

Transfer Station located just to the north of the compost site, operated by FCR. 

18. Are retail sales allowed from the compost site?  The City anticipates that small volume retail 

sales will not be handled at the compost site.  Recycle Ann Arbor operates a drop off station at 

the corner of Platt and Ellsworth Roads that is more compatible with resident traffic associated 

with small volume sales.  The contractor would need to negotiate a deal with Recycle Ann Arbor 

for this service. 

19. Does the Ann Arbor name have to be associated with the product?   While the City has 

developed a local name for quality materials, there is no requirement that the City’s name be 
associated with the product. 

20. How was the capacity/throughput of the City’s compost equipment determined?  It is based on 
manufacturer specifications. 

21. Does the contractor get exclusive use of the Compost Equipment Storage Building (CESB)?  Yes, 

though the City will likely complete periodic inspections of the facility to ensure that it is being 

properly maintained. 

22. What about CESB utilities?  The contractor is responsible for these operating costs of the facility.  

Please refer to page 21, section H of the RFP. 

23. Who is responsible for major repairs to the CESB?  In general, the City would be responsible for 

major repairs to the exterior shell of the building and primary mechanical systems within the 

building that are not the result of a lack of or improper maintenance by the contractor.  These 

details would be addressed in the final contract between the two parties. 

24. A longer term of agreement may be beneficial to both the City and the contractor, is the City 

open to this?  All proposals must include the pricing based on the term on page 14 of the RFP.  

Proposers are welcome to submit an alternative bid, along with their primary bid, showing a 

different term and associated pricing for consideration by the City.  

25. Additional information:  The following vendor information was submitted from a Mr. Logsden  

interested in using the City composting site:   

Stansley Industries has a contract to transport and dispose of yard waste from the City of Detroit 

Southfield transfer station.  We would like to be able to use your facility however we need to be in the 

$12.00-$13.00 /ton range.  The material would be brought in 120 cu yd walking floor trailers.  

Approximate annual tonnage 8-10,000/tons.   

Phone:  734 216 8118; email:  jlogsdon78@aol.com 
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Questions and Answers to Written Comments: 

1. To maximize labor we would like to grind once every three months.  Is this acceptable 

procedure?  This is acceptable as long as there are no odor complaints and operations are 

consistent with the MDNRE.  

2. Can we bring in small amounts of manures/animal bedding?  Contractor must meet the 

requirements of the MDNRE compost regulations.   

3. Can we take the site over earlier than the first of the year? Or work with current marketing for 

fall?  It may be possible to for the selected contractor to work with the City on marketing earlier 

than January 1, 2011.   

4. Is the land and buildings that the composting facility located on leased, or part of the overall 

agreement?  The land and the building for the facility are owned by the City, and will be made 

available to the selected contractor at no additional cost.   

5. Would you consider lease purchase on the equipment that could be taken from the tipping fee 

received from the city?  We will consider a lease.  The lease would be paid separately.   

6. Can the buildings be renovated, or expanded, to accommodate for better marketing plans?  This 

would need to be negotiated with the City.  Proposer is encouraged to submit a proposed plan 

with their proposal. 

7. When would the proposed contract purchase price of the equipment be determined?  The 

proposer will include a proposed purchase price for the equipment that they are interested in, 

and the City will evaluate this as part of the proposal.   

8. Section 2.8 RFP 

a.  What are the needs of the City of Ann Arbor for wood chips, compost, and soil 

products?  This varies from year to year.  The selected contractor shall provide finished 

compost (approximately 1,500 cy/yr) and mulch (approximately 1,000 cy/yr) products to 

Ann Arbor residents via distribution at wholesale prices to the City’s drop-off station 

operator, Recycle Ann Arbor.   

b. Please identify what ‘soil products’ you are referring to.   Ann Arbor does not currently 

sell any soil products.  This refers to any blends that the proposer may develop.  

c. What is the established purchase price for wood chips, compost, and soil products? 

i. Mulch (wood chips):  $10-12/cy 

ii. Compost:  $2.75 - $7.00/cy (depending on volume) CURRENTLY SOLD OUT 

d. Who sets this pricing?  This pricing is currently set administratively within parameters 

that were set by City Council.  The Contractor’s sales prices for wood chips, compost, 
and soil products will NOT need to be set or approved by City Council. 

e. Is this pricing different from citizens, and the DOS? If so, what is their pricing?  The DOS 

and City Parks shall receive materials at wholesale prices. 

f. In part D, what brand are you referring to?  The City of Ann Arbor compost. 

g. For marketing purposes, can the selected Contractor use our current brand to sell all 

composted material?  Yes.   

h. Is a sub brand required?  No. 

9. Section 3.4 RFP 
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a. Does all the current composting equipment that the City of Ann Arbor determines to sell 

need to be purchased by the selected Contractor or can we purchase only what we 

need?  The proposer can purchase only what they need.   
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PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING 

ATTENDEE LIST 
   

 

19-Jul-10 

   

     NAME COMPANY PHONE EMAIL 

 Stacey Petrovas Soil Solutions Co.   765-479-3123   

 Jeff McBurnie New England Organics 207-347-3600 jeff.mcburnie@casella.com 

 Jay Kilbourn New England Organics 207-347-3600 jay.kilbourn@casella.com 

 Tom Turner Spurt Industries 616-886-0810 spurtindustries@yahoo.com 

 Matt Kulhanek City of Ann Arbor 734-994-9124 mjkulhanek@a2gov.org 

 

Tom McMurtrie City of Ann Arbor 

734-794-6430 

X43707 tmcmurtrie@a2gov.org 

 Brad Morgan Morgan Composting 231-734-2451 info@dairydoo.com 

 Dale Morgan Morgan Composting 231-734-2451   

 Justin Morgan Morgan Composting 231-734-2451   

 Dave Kilanski Kilanski Excavating & Land Clearing 734-941-4583 wkilanski@comcast.net 

 Buddy Beard SRS 251-445-5500 bbeard@srs.com 

 Matthew Sedlak B & B Landscaping 810-632-6061   

 Michael Nicholson  WeCare Organics 419-349-5402 Michael.Nicholson@att.net  

 Arnie Geldermans Midwestern Consulting 734-995-0200 ag@midwesternconsulting.com 

 Dave Retell Veolia   dave.rettell@veoliaes.com 

 Carla Castagnero Agrecycle Inc 412-767-7645 carla@agrecycle.com 

 Craig Geyer Synagro 520-631-4982 cgeyer@synagro.com 

 Don Popma Synagro 616-291-7878 dpopma@synagro.com 

 Daniel Domigan Synagro 937-789-7234 ddomigan@synagro.com 

 Larry Mullins EWS 248-318-8250 info@ewsmullins.com 

 Mark Miller Synagro 616-318-4146 mmiller@synagro.com 

 

Nicole Chardoul RRS 

734-996-1361 

X227 nchardoul@recycle.com 

 Stewart Beal Beal 734-320-6376 sbeal@gobeal.com 

 John Myers WM 248-596-3506 jmyers@wm.com 
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Attachment A: Form A-10 (revised) 

Composting Processing Services Cost and Revenue Share 

The Cost Proposal table must be filled out in full in order to have the cost proposals evaluated as part of the 
Contractor selection process.  The material volumes used in this table should be reasonable estimates of 
anticipated volumes by the Proposer.  City quantities are estimates only based on past performance 
and are no guarantee of future quantities.   
 

Material (per year) Yr. 1 Y. 2 Yr. 3 Yr. 4 Yr. 5 

(A) Total City Leaves and Yard 
Debris (tons/yr)* 

9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 

(B) Tipfee ($/ton)      

(C) Total City Cost ($/yr) =A x B      

(D)  Projected Incoming Merchant  
Tons (tons/yr) ** 

     

(E)  City Share of Incoming Merchant 
income ($/ton) 

     

(F)  Payment to City - Incoming 
Material ($/yr) =D x E 

     

(G)  Outgoing Material – Projected 
Market Sales (tons) ** 

     

(H)  City Share of Outgoing Materials 
sales ($/ton) 

     

(I)  Payment to City – Outgoing 
Materials ($/yr) =G x H 

     

Total Share to City ($/yr) =F + I      

*Quantities include a small quantity of Source Separated Organics.  Note that starting in 2010, fall leaves will no 

longer be collected separately and will instead be collected with yard debris in compost carts or paper yard debris bags 

** Merchant and Market quantities are considered estimates and are used to compare cost proposals. 

 

 



Ann Arbor Compost Facility RFP

Financial Analysis

RRSYr. 1 Yr. 2 Yr. 3 Yr. 4 Yr. 5

Environmental Wood Solutions 19,000             19,000        19,000        19,000        19,000        

Total City Tipfee Expense 216,000$        228,960$    242,730$    257,220$    272,700$    

Total Revenue Share Income 30,000$           31,800$      33,700$      35,700$      37,900$      

Net Cost to the City 186,000$       197,160$   209,030$   221,520$   234,800$   

Equipment Revenue to City 87,000$           87,000$      87,000$      87,000$      87,000$      

Total Cost to the City Net of Equiment 99,000$           110,160$    122,030$    134,520$    147,800$    

Saint Louis Composting 25,065             30,600        36,650        36,700        36,750        

Total City Tipfee Expense 220,500$        220,500$    229,500$    229,500$    234,000$    

Total Revenue Share Income 35,925$           50,080$      64,194$      64,292$      65,361$      

Net Cost to the City 184,575$       170,420$   165,306$   165,208$   168,639$   

Equipment Revenue to City 68,138$           68,138$      68,138$      68,138$      68,138$      

Total Cost to the City Net of Equiment 116,437$        102,282$    97,168$      97,070$      100,501$    

Spurt Industries 25,000             25,000        25,000        25,000        25,000        

Total City Tipfee Expense 441,000$        441,000$    441,000$    441,000$    441,000$    

Total Revenue Share Income 162,000$        182,500$    193,000$    209,000$    229,000$    

Net Cost to the City 279,000$       258,500$   248,000$   232,000$   212,000$   

Equipment Revenue to City 117,012$        117,012$    117,012$    117,012$    117,012$    

Total Cost to the City Net of Equiment 161,988$        141,488$    130,988$    114,988$    94,988$      

WeCare Organics 20,300             21,000        23,000        25,000        26,000        

Total City Tipfee Expense 526,500$        526,500$    517,500$    513,000$    513,000$    

Total Revenue Share Income 405,000$        452,400$    560,500$    677,000$    746,900$    

Net Cost to the City 121,500$       74,100$     (43,000)$    (164,000)$ (233,900)$ 

Equipment Revenue to City 87,000$           87,000$      87,000$      87,000$      87,000$      

Total Cost to the City Net of Equiment 34,500$           (12,900)$     (130,000)$  (251,000)$  (320,900)$  

7/26/2010 AACompostFinRev2.xls 1























































COMPOST OPERATIONS

Composting FY 09 FY 10 FY 11*

Expenses: Perm Time 193,733  171,348  175,356  

OT 29,198     29,000     29,000     

Annl Sick Leave 256          255          255          

Longevity 3,300       2,880       3,105       

Deferred Comp 1,655       1,464       1,464       

Lifie Insurance 560          564          576          

Medical Ins 28,955     29,116     31,684     

Disability Ins 30            48            48            

VEBA Funding 13,260     20,004     19,248     

Worker's Comp 6,564       6,192       6,336       

Soc Security 17,309     13,104     13,404     

Retirement Cont 20,796     21,936     30,696     

Dental Insurance 3,282       3,096       3,348       

Optical Insurance 584          564          564          

Unemployment 552          442          443          

Electricity -           6,000       6,180       

Water 83            150          150          

Telecom 471          700          700          

Rent City Veh 6,114       

Rent Outside Veh 477          500          500          

Fleet Mnt 228,088  286,628  295,227  

Fleet Fuel 40,448     36,013     37,094     

Fleet Depreciation 73,632     74,837     74,837     

Fleet Mgmt 480          754          715          

Contracted Serv 30,761     10,000     10,000     

Contracted Temps 31,875     24,000     25,000     

Uniforms 315          1,180       1,180       

Materials & Sup 8,419       14,000     12,000     

Taxes 5,838       7,000       7,000       

Contingency 9,000       

747,035  770,775  786,110  

Additional

Expenses: MSC (7.5% of SW) 20,696     21,317     21,956     

PSA 7,946       8,184       8,430       

Depreciation 110,442  80,758    80,758    

IT Charges 7,530       7,756       7,989       

Total Expenses: 893,649  888,791  905,243  

Composting

Revenues: Drop-Yrd Wst 231,601  238,549  245,706  

Sale-Compost 60,584     62,402     64,274     

Sale -Other SW 11,124     11,458     11,801     



Sale - Mulch 33,129    34,123    35,147    

336,438  346,531  356,927  

*  Projected


